
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

APRIL 18, 2011 

BUSINESS MEETING 

6:30 P.M.                                                                           
 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / 

      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / April 4, 2011 

                                                  Council Work Session minutes / April 11, 2011 

                                                    

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware 

          Review minutes / April 4
th

  

          1.)  Ordinances:  

                 a.)  HVAC Units: Library & Recreation Center / Ordinance 2011-33 

    b.)  Used Wheel Loader / Ordinance 2011-34   

           

          2.)   Resolutions / Bid Awards: 

                  a.)  Used Wheel Loader / Caterpillar Financial Services Corp. (th9ompson Tractor Co.) 

                         /  Resolution 2011-34           

                  b.)  Concrete Pipe / Hanson Pipe & Precast / Resolution 2011-35       

                  c.)  Skid Steer Loader / Thompson Tractor Company / Resolution 2011-36 

 

           3.)   Other Resolutions: 

                   a.)  Garbage Truck Lease Financing-Hancock Bank / Resolution 2011-37 

                   b.)  Surplus Equipment / Chair / Resolution 2011-38 

                   c.)  Volunteer Firefighters Loan & Reimbursement / Resolution 2011-39 

                   d.)  Lake Forest Yacht Club 2011 Sailboat Race / Resolution 2011-40 

                   

            4.)   Motions: 

                    a.)  Authorizing the participation with the Utility Board contracting with a collection agency for   

                          the collection of bad garbage debt with a fee of 30% of the amount collected 

                    b.)  Authorizing the transfer of $600 for training from District #1 to District #3 

                    c.)  Reject Bids: 2011-O-Police Vehicles and purchase from State Bid List 

                    d.)  Reject Bids: 2011-P-Recr/Parks Extended Cab Truck and purchase from State Bid List 

 

             5.)   Financial Reports: 

                    a.)  Treasurers Report / March 31, 2011 

                    b.)  Sales & Use Tax Collections / February 28, 2011 

                    c.)  Lodging Tax Collection / February 28, 2011 

 

             6.)  Work Session / April 11, 2011 

                    a.)  Hiring Freeze Exception / Grounds Public Service Worker / Ordinance 2011-30 

                    b.)  Mobile Bay National Estuary Program / Ordinance 2011-31 

                    c.)  Campbell Swamp Appraisal Appropriation / Ordinance 2011-32 

 

 

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  -  Lake  

          Review minutes / March 7
th

  

          Review minutes / April 4
th

   

  

1



COUNCIL AGENDA                                              APRIL 18, 2011                                                    PAGE  2 

 

 

C.  PUBLIC SAFETY –   Palumbo   

 D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Palumbo 

    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  Yelding     

          Review minutes / January 18
th

  

          Review minutes / February 21
st
  

          Review minutes / March 21
st
  

           

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

          Review minutes / September 2, 2010 

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette   

    C.  Industrial Development Board – Yelding  

          Review minutes / March 28
th

  

    D.  Library Board – Lake     

          Review minutes / January 6
th

  

          Review minutes / February 3
rd

  

   Review minutes / March 3
rd

           

    E.  Planning Commission – Barnette 

    F.  Recreation Board – Reese       

    G.  Utility Board - Scott    

          Review minutes / February 23
rd

             

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A. Mayor’s Report      
           a.)  ABC License / Dollar General / 050 – Retail Beer (Off Premises Only / 070 – Retail Table Wine /   

                 (Off Premises Only)  

            b.) ABC License / Champy Famous Fried Chicken / 040 – Retail Beer (On or Off Premises / 060 –  

                 Retail Table Wine (On or Off Premises) 

            c.)  Parade Permit / Bayside Medical Missions / 5K - 10K – 1 Mile Run / September 24, 2011   

 

B. City Attorney’s Report  
 

C. Department Head Comments    

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:      

                                                                               

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

a.) Bid Award: PW/Used Wheel Loader / Caterpillar Financial Services  

Corp (Thompson Tractor). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-34 

 

b.)  Bid Award: Concrete Pipe / Hanson Pipe & Precast. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-35 

 

c.)  Bid Award: Skid Steel Loader / Thompson Tractor Co . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-36 

 

d.)  Garbage Truck Lease Financing / Hancock Bank. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-37 

 

e.)   Declaring Certain Property Surplus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-38 

 

2



 
COUNCIL AGENDA                                              APRIL 18, 2011                                                    PAGE  3 

 

 

 f.)   Agreement: Daphne Volunteer Firefighters Assoc. Inc. / FD Burn  

        Building Training Center / Fire Truck & Equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-39 

 

 g.)  Community Contributions: Lake Forest Yacht Club 2011 

        Sailboat Race. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-40 

 

 h.)   Ennis Property Acquisition / . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-41 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

         1
ST

  READ   

a.) Approving Hiring Freeze Exception / Grounds Public Service Worker. . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-30 

 

b.) Appropriation: Mobile Bay National Estuary Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-31 

 

c.) Appropriation: Campbell Swamp Appraisal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-32 

 

d.)  Appropriation: Library & Recreation HAVC Unit Replacement. . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-33 

 

e.)  Appropriation: PW/Used Wheel Loader. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-34 

 

    

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
ROLL CALL 

 
 
CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES                                    
COUNCILMAN YELDING     PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCILMAN BURNAM    PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         
    
MAYOR 
 
MAYOR SMALL    PRESENT       ABSENT            
 
CITY CLERK: 
 
DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 
 
CITY ATTORNEY: 
 
CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    
 
 
MINUTE NOTES: 
 
 
                                                             
 
                                                             
 
                                                             
 
                                                             
 
                                                             

4



 
                                                             
 
                                                             
 
 
      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 
 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                                                             

5



APRIL 4, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                   

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Invocation was given by Councilman Lake. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Bailey Yelding; Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Ron 

Scott; Derek Boulware; August Palumbo. 

 

Also present: Mayor Small; David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, 

City Attorney; James White, Fire Chief; Richard Johnson, Publics Works Director; David McKelroy, 

Recreation Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director; Kim Briley, Finance Director; Vickie Hinman, 

Human Resource Director;  David Carpenter, Police Chief; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Jane Ellis, Mayors Assistant; Anne Morris; Reference Librarian; Officer 

Toby Pearce, Police Department; Willie Robison, BZA. 

 

Absent: Tonja Young, Library Director; 

 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the March 21, 2011 Council meeting minutes.   

Seconded by Councilman Scott.  

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                      

 

 

 

4.  REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 

    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the Special Called Finance meeting are in the packet.   

 

B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

The committee met today, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Palumbo 

The minutes for the March 9
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be April 13
th

 at 4:30 

p.m. 

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE –  Palumbo 

No report.  The next meeting will be April 13
th

 after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

 

6



APRIL 4, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Yelding 

The Beautification minutes for the March 4
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Mrs. Jones 

The board will meet Thursday at 6:00 p.m. to consider a variance for the Lake Forest Apartments. 

 

          a.) Re-appoint Mr. Billy Mayhand to the BZA for a three (3) year term. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to re-appoint Mr. Billy Mayhand to the Board of Zoning 

Adjustments term to end March 2014.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The minutes for the March 28
th

 meeting are in the packet.  They are working with Kim Briley and Jane 

Ellis to re-establish the May Day Festival. 

 

C. Industrial Development Board – Yelding 

No report. 

 

D.   Library Board – Lake 

The “Spring Into Reading” Festival was held Saturday, April 2
nd

, and it was a great success.  There were 

approximately 2,000 attendees. The Library would like to especially thank the Recreation and Public 

Works Departments for their help with the festival.  National Library Week is the second week of April 

through the 16
th

, and the Library will participate to forgive fines if you have overdue books.  

 

F. Planning Commission – Barnette 

The minutes for the January 27
th

 and February 24
th

 meetings are in the packet.   

 

a.) Set Public Hearing Date for May 2, 2011 to consider: 

 

Rezoning:   GCD Acquisitions I, L.L.C.  

Property Located:    Northwest of the intersection of Anchor Cross Boulevard and U. S.  

                   Highway 90, Lot 2A of the re-subdivision of Lot 2, Medical Office  

                                Building and Cancer Center of Malbis 

Present Zoning:  B-2, General Business District 

Requested Zoning:    R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District 

Recommendation:      No recommendation 

 

 

7



APRIL 4, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to set a Public Hearing Date for May 2, 2011 to consider:  

 

Rezoning:   GCD Acquisitions I, L.L.C.  

Property Located:    Northwest of the intersection of Anchor Cross Boulevard and U. S.         

  Highway 90, Lot 2A of the re-subdivision of Lot 2, Medical Office                               

  Building and Cancer Center of Malbis 

Present Zoning:  B-2, General Business District 

Requested Zoning:    R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District 

 

Seconded by Councilman Palumbo. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED        MOTION  CARRIED 

 

 

Mrs. Jones stated that she has only received one set of comments on t he Land Use Ordinance from the 

council, and if council will send her their comments by Monday she can include them in the ordinance 

and present the final draft at the work session on Monday. 

 

F.   Recreation Board – Reese 

No report. 

 

G. Utility Board – Scott 

The board met last Wednesday, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  The next meeting will be 

April 27ht at 5:00 p.m. in the council chambers. 

 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

A.  Mayor’s Report 

              a.)  Parade Permit / Daphne United Methodist Church / Annual 5K and Fun Run /  

                     April  23, 2011 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve the Parade Permit for Daphne United 

Methodist Church / Annual 5K and Fun Run / April 23, 2011.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
8



APRIL 4, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

                 b.)  Request for Extension of Promotional Weekends for Advertising 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to extend Promotional Advertising on Weekends from April, 2011 

through October, 2011.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

Discussion was held on the length of the extension.  Council President Barnette stated that she would 

like this to go to the work session for further discussion. 

 

Councilman Lake withdrew his motion.  Councilman Scott withdrew his second. 

 

The extension of the promotional weekends will be considered at the April 11
th

 work session. 

 
Mayor Small stated that he had no further report, and asked if he could be excused from the meeting. 

 

Council President Barnette excused  Mayor Small from the meeting. 

   

     B.  City Attorney Report 

Council President Barnette stated that they have pulled the proposed settlement for the Schaffer / 

Murphy litigation from the agenda.  There will be no settlement decision tonight. 

 

Mr. Ross reminded council that their statement of Economic Interest forms are due by April 30
th

, as 

well as Ethics training, and this can be done on line.  

 

C. Department Head Comments 

Richard Merchant – Building Official -  reported that there were 21 new building permits issued for 

the month of March, and this is the best it has been in three (3) years. They had 135 total permits 

which was about $41,000 in revenue for the city. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that Ballroom dance is April 15
th

, and tickets 

are on sale for $15.00, and $150.00 per table. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director -  reported that Brown Bag by the Bay is Thursday from 11:30 

– 1:00 at May Day Park.  Saturday at Trione there is a 20 team softball tournament. lacrosse and 

soccer going on.  On Sunday, April 10
th

 the Baldwin Pops will be playing at Bayfront Park, and April 

16
th

 is the Easter Egg Hunt at Lott Park. 

 

Mrs. Jane Ellis – Mayors Assistant – reported that they were working on the May Day Festival. 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Mr. Eddie Murphy – 103 Windsor Court – (For the record) Ya’ll are going to pay a fellow $4,000 

for breaking the law.  You are still enforcing the law, but you are going to pay him to break the law. 

So, since he is going to be paid that kind of money, for my expenses from 2003 forward I am seeking a 

$25,000 settlement on what I have spent, and the time that I have put into it, and it was proven that the 

city was at fault where the water was coming over the streets, and coming over to my property so that  

9



APRIL 4, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

I had to build retainers and hire the engineers to do it.  So I am seeking $25,000 plus interest backed 

up to 2003. 

 

Council President Barnette stated for public information there is no settlement on the table, and there 

is no settlement to be made by this body.  There is a proposed settlement on the table, and the council 

has taken no action, and will take no action tonight. 

 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Owner of businesses in Daphne –spoke regarding the sign ordinance reminding 

council that they are embarking on paving projects, and businesses collect taxes that pay for that type 

of activity.  This city is going to need much more of this activity, and the sign ordinance is the number 

one problem in the city that businesses have in dealing with city government.  He feels it violates the 

constitutional amendment that the forefathers founded this county on.  People have the right to earn a 

living, and the sign ordinance greatly interferes with that right, especially for local businesses, and 

smaller businesses that cannot use national media advertising to promote their products.  He just 

wanted council to know that the business community is aware of this, and would like to have as much 

help as they can to continue in business. 

 

Mr. Ben Cruitt – Ridgewood Drive -  stated that the sign ordinance is detrimental to Daphne, and that 

council is trying to regulate commerce, and they have no constitutional right to do so. 

 

 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

  RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  Acceptance of Property / Mary F. Smith / Round-About . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2011-31 

 

b.)  Acceptance of Property / Orrie J. & Earlie Smith / Round-About . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-32 

 

c.)  Acceptance of Property / YMCA / Round-About . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2011-33  

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2011-31, 2011-32, and 

2011-33.  Seconded by Councilman Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolutions 2011-31, 2011-32 and 2011-33.  Seconded 

by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE   ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED                                  

                                                                

 

 
10



APRIL 4, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 
 

        2
ND

 READ         
a.) Appropriation of Funds: Temporary Services: Custodian . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-21 

 

b.) Appropriation of Funds: Deputy Finance Director . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-22 

 

c.) Amending Job Classification Schedule / Deputy Finance Director  . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-23 

 

d.) Approving Hiring Freeze Exception: Grounds Public Service Worker. . . . ./Ordinance 2011-24 

 

e.) Approving Hiring Freeze Exception: Mechanic Technician. . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2011-25 

 

f.) Appropriation of Funds: (5) Police Vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-26 

 

g.) Appropriation of Funds: Used Wheel Loader with Interchangeable 

Attachments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2011-29 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-21.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-21.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    Yelding,  Lake, Scott, Palumbo, Barnette                      NAY    Reese, Boulware             

                                                                   

                                                                      MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-22.  Seconded by 

Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Reese, Boulware, Barnette                                 NAY      Palumbo 

 

                                                                   MOTION CARRIEED        
 

 
11



APRIL 4, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-22.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Yelding Aye     Boulware   Nay 

Lake Aye     Palumbo   Nay 

Reese Nay     Barnette   Aye 

Scott Aye 

 

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Barnette    NAY    Reese, Boulware, Palumbo 

 

                                                                        MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman  Scott to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-23.  Seconded by 

Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-23.  Seconded by Councilman 

Yelding. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 
Yelding Aye     Boulware   Nay 

Lake Aye     Palumbo   Nay 

Reese Nay     Barnette   Aye 

Scott Aye 

 

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Scott, Barnette   NAY    Reese, Boulware, Palumbo 

 

                                                             MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2011-24 and 2011-25.  

Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 
12



APRIL 4, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-24 and 2011-25.  Seconded by Councilman 

Yelding. 

 

Councilman Palumbo and Councilman Reese asked to consider these separately. 

 

Councilman Scott withdrew Ordinance 2011-25.  Councilman Yelding agreed. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-24.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that she has already discussed with Mrs. Hinman 

restructuring of the departments, and this will be on the April or May work session. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Yelding Aye     Boulware   Nay 

Lake Aye     Palumbo   Aye 

Reese Aye     Barnette   Aye 

Scott Aye 

 

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Reese, Scott, Palumbo, Barnette  NAY    Boulware 

 

                                                                MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2011-25.  Seconded by Councilman Yelding. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Yelding Aye     Boulware  Nay 

Lake Aye     Palumbo  Nay 

Reese Aye     Barnette  Nay 

Scott Aye 

       

AYE    Yelding, Lake, Reese, Scott,        NAY    Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette 

 

                                                          MOTION CARRIED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-26.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    Yelding, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette   NAY    Lake 

 

                                                             MOTION CARRIED 
 

13



APRIL 4, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

9 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2011-26.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

Council discussed the ordinance. 

 

Councilman Boulware called for the question. 

 

AYE    Yelding, Reese, Scott, Boulware, Palumbo, Barnette   NAY    Lake 

 

                                                              MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to waive the reading of Ordinance 2011-29. Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Palumbo to adopt Ordinance 2011-29.  Seconded by Councilman 

Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

8. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilman Lake said with the first dealership they heard excuses and reasons why there was mis-

communication, and the second dealership they heard the same thing excuses and reasons why.  The 

first time the Police Department blamed it on the dealership, and the second time the same dealership 

when he went to talk with them and found out they received misinformation, and the third time he 

called Mr. Thompson and asked him about this, and that is the only reason Mr. Thompson wrote a 

letter to council because he was not aware of it until after the fact.  He is tired of it. 

 

Councilman Palumbo stated that there were comments tonight about how terrible the Daphne sign 

ordinance is, and he pointed out that one reason why all those businesses come to Daphne is because 

the city has a certain average median income in the city, and people move here because of the beauty 

of the city.  Look Airport Boulevard where there are so many signs that you just pass them right up, 

and you don’t know what business is where, and all it does is blind you.  It is just a compilation of 

junk, eye pollution. He suggested that they go down Airport Boulevard where anything goes, and see 

how many of those businesses are boarded up.  Then go back in 90 days and see how many those 

businesses have folded, and there is another one trying, and then another and another. How many 

signs, and the size of them has very little to do with the success of the businesses, and that has been 

proven.  They have a beautiful city, and there are some on the council that has been around long  

14



APRIL 4, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING                                                       

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

10 

 

enough to help put this in place many years ago.  He said to ride down Highway 98 with the oak trees, 

and what do you see a beautiful thoroughfare, but you also see thriving businesses that don’t have 

flashing garish signs.  That is part of the beauty of Daphne, and what sets the city apart. 
 

Council President Barnette announced that for the work session they have request for the extension of the sign 

ordinance, a presentation from Roberta Swann from the Mobile Bay National Estuary Program, a wrap up of the 

Land Use Ordinance, and whatever else comes up in the next couple of days.  As for the Deputy Finance 

Director she was relatively quiet on that debate, but for the record the reason she voted to approve that position 

is that she does believe that the department has grown considerably, the finances has grown considerably, funds 

have grown considerably, and more importantly they are seeing that they are not able to get the information in a 

timely manner that council ask for, and no disrespect to the department, because of the increase they do not get 

the budget presented to them in time enough to adopt it in a timely manner, like last year they did not adopt  the 

budget until the first of December, and they do not have a regular span of projections.  They do not have a lot of 

the information that will help them do their job better.  For those reasons she voted for the Deputy Finance 

Director position, and she said to Mrs. Briley that she hopes that the person gets on board and helps prepare the 

budget packet to get it to council much earlier this year.  

 

 

9. ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Yelding to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Reese. 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED              MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:10 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                 

                             
 

________________________________                                                                         

David L. Cohen,        

City Clerk, MMC                   

                                                            Certification by Presiding Officer:       

 

 

        _________________________________                                                                              

        Cathy S. Barnette, 

        Council President 

15



APRIL 11, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Cathy Barnette; John Lake; Kelly Reese; Derek Boulware; August 

Palumbo.   

 

ABSENT:  Bailey Yelding; Ron Scott. 

 

Also present:  David Cohen, City Clerk; Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director; Ashley Campbell, 

Environmental Programs Manager; Joe Lemoine, Planning Commission; Al Guarisco, Village Point 

Foundation; Selena Vaughn, Village Point Foundation; Roberta Swann, Mobile Bay National Estuary 

Program. 

 

Absent: Fred Small, Mayor. 

 

Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

1. ACQUISITION OF CAMPBELL SWAMP & ADJOINING PROPERTY: 

 

Mr. David Cohen, City Clerk, stated that the Utility Board is in the process of transferring property which is 

Campbell Wetlands (Swamp) which is around 20 acres. The property the city is interested in is Dr. and Mrs. 

Innis’s property which is 4.5 acres adjoining the Utility Board’s property.  An interesting thing is that there 

are BP NRDA funds that will be coming from BP for the fines that they will be paying for the oil that they 

have put into the gulf.  It will result in many millions of dollars, and they will need to mitigate their pollution 

of the gulf.  Potentially, this site will qualify for a mitigation point, because it is primarily a wetlands area, 

and it will also enhance the 20 acres the city is about to receive from the Utility Board.  Another interesting 

fact about the grant from this fund is it is a zero match. The property, right now, is on the market for around 

$1.2 million, and at this point in time if the city decides to purchase the property, there should be an appraisal, 

and then proceed with Congressman Bonner’s office and other agencies that grant funds for these projects. 

 

Council President Barnette stated that Mr. Cohen went to a workshop a couple of weeks ago and met a couple 

of people that are working with the NRDA process through BP, as well as, Congressman Bonner’s staff 

member Mr. Parker, and they talked about the land swap with the Utilities Board. So with the acquiring of the 

19 acres at no cost to the city, and Mr. McElroy has brought a letter of commitment tonight to further seal that 

in, and the additional 4 ½ plus acres that are owned by the Innis’s that would make nearly 25 contiguous acres 

which is something that has been on the Village Point Foundation’s radar of support, as well as, tying up that 

piece of property. It may well be worth pursuing, at no cost to the city, the idea of adding the Innis’s property 

into the Campbell Swamp acreage, because it also adjoins the bay.  Congressman Bonner’s office has said 

now for both the NRDA process, as well as, potentially, some other state land programs is that if this is 

something the city would like to do they would like to see a commitment letter from council that they have 

this 19 acres that is here, and they would like to pursue the 4 ½ acres.  It is presented right now with a zero 

match.  If council is comfortable it will be on the agenda for Monday night.  The property will have to be tied 

just like they did with Village Point, it is not developable property. 

 

Consensus of council was to bring this forward Monday night with an ordinance approving an appraisal, and 

to appropriate funds for the appraisal from the Lodging Tax Fund. Mr. Cohen will prepare a letter to send to 

Congressman Bonner’s office stating that the city is interested in purchasing the property with NERDA 

Funds. 

 

 

 

16



APRIL 11, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

2. ROBERTA SWANN / MOBILE BAY NATIONAL ESTUARY PROGRAM 

 

Mrs. Swann gave a presentation on the National Estuary Program and the Mobile Bay National Estuary 

Program (MBNEP). They have developed the D’Olive Watershed Plan to help alleviate the problems in the 

D’Olive system.  The MBNEP has funded a lot of projects in Daphne, and after the presentation she requested 

that council continue to fund the program.  The city has contributed $3,000 per year to the program, but in 

order to implement the plan in Daphne they are requesting a $10,000 contribution for this fiscal year. 

 

Consensus of council was to put this on the agenda for Monday’s council meeting. 

 

 

3. FILL PUBLIC WORKS VACANCY: 
 

Mr. Johnson presented justification for filling the vacancy.  He stated that because of the type of work 

involved there would always be a high turnover in this department. 

 

Council asked questions of Mr. Johnson and Mrs. Hinman. 

 

Consensus of council was to put this on the agenda for Monday’s council meeting. 

 

 

4. ALDOT COOPERATIVE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

 

Mr. Johnson stated that the city has a record of the maintenance agreement for part of Highway 181, but they 

could not find a record for the other part, so the state has combined it all in this agreement.  The state wants 

the city to maintain the landscaping, ground work, from the north city limits to the southern city limits which 

includes Bellaton, Dunmore and Old Field subdivisions.  The problem is part of Highway 181 is not in the 

city limits, and the city cannot maintain grounds that are not in the city limits.   They discussed in the Public 

Works meeting annexing Highway 181 into the city, and one of the first things they have to do to annex it is 

to see if the state has a problem with the city annexing it, and then go from there.  The Mayor has sent a letter 

in this regard.  The advantage to annexing is this will make property along Highway 181 contiguous to those 

who may want to annex into the city. 

 

Council discussed the maintenance agreement and annexation with Mr. Johnson. 

 

Consensus of council was to put this on an agenda in May. 

 

 

5. REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF SIGN ORDINANCE 
 

Mr. Ross, City Attorney, mentioned to council that they cannot amend an ordinance by a motion it has to be 

amended by another ordinance. 

 

Council discussed that if they consent to amending the ordinance they want it spelled out that this does not 

mean they can do whatever they want that the rest of the sign ordinance applies.  They also want the 

enforcement procedure spelled out in the ordinance.  

 

Council did not come to a consensus. 

 

17



APRIL 11, 2011 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

3 

 

 

 

6. ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                                           

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

David L. Cohen,                                                                     

City Clerk, MMC                                                                                                                                             
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

       ________________________________      

      Cathy S. Barnette,     

      Council President        

18



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

19



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

April 11, 2011 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm.  Present were Chairman Derek Boulware, Councilman Bailey 
Yelding, Finance Director Kim Briley, Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson and Accountant Donna Page. 
 
Councilman Ron Scott was absent. 
 
Also in attendance were Mayor Fred Small, Human Resources Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director 
Richard Johnson, Library Director Tonja Young, Recreation Director David McKelroy, Revenue Officer Heather 
Gwynn, Police Captain Danny Bell, Public Works Superintendent Melvin McCarley, Building Maintenance 
Supervisor Frank Barnett, and Fire Battalion Chief Joey Holasz. 
 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
  
 
 
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
A.  Update on Human Resource Department Activity  
 
Ms. Vickie Hinman, Human Resources Director, presented the Human Resources activity update.  Open 
positions include Recreation Program Coordinator, 2 - PSW (Grounds), and Mechanic.   
 
The Safety Committee sent a reminder to directors on required annual training for employees on preventing 
back injuries.  The Public Works department will order sleeves and gloves for bio-hazard cleaning for 
Custodians, and, next month, will begin training employees on preventing heat stress and exhaustion. The next 
Safety Committee meeting will be Wednesday, April 27 at 8:15 am. 
 
Ms. Hinman reported on the following department projects:  
 Lunch and Learn – Dept Heads on April 6, 2011 
 Lunch and Learn – Admin Asst – April 28, 2011 
 Service Awards luncheon – March 23, 2011 – 40 recipients received an award for years of service 
 New Employee Orientation – March 29, 2011 – Seven new employees attended 
 Safety Awards distributed to employees 
 Ethics Training and Statement of Economic Interest due by April 30, 2011 
 First Committee meeting for Benefits Fair – May 5, 2011 
 Memo to Employees that all pay will be by direct deposit; eliminating paper checks will reduce costs and                     
             be more efficient. 
 
 
B.  Personnel Vacancy TYD Summary 
 
The Personnel Vacancy YTD Summary shows a total budget savings as of March 31, 2011 of $136,915.73.   
 
 
C.  Request to fill Vacancy: Grounds Public Service Worker 
 
Mr. Richard Johnson submitted a request to fill a Grounds Public Service Worker vacancy. Discussion continued 
that spring and summer are the busiest times of the year for the grounds department, and without full staff they 
are falling behind.  Mr. Johnson noted that he has had a 50% turnover in this department in the eight months he 
has been here.  He noted that there are ten budgeted positions in grounds, but he currently only has six 

20



Finance Minutes - 04-11.doc  2  

employees working. Mayor Small noted there are several areas on the Right of Ways that need maintenance 
done.  Mr. Johnson stated that because Grounds is short staffed, they have to prioritize Work Orders and they 
are going through the list. Mr. Boulware asked what are minimum staffing requirements?  Mr. Johnson stated he 
could do the job with nine employees. Mr. Boulware discussed the current budget and rehire procedures. 
Additionally, he commented on the need to reorganize the existing work force to stabilize the budget and work 
toward COLA raises.  Mr. Yelding discussed the need for filling the vacancy.  Discussion continued and Mr. 
Yelding recommended this request go before the full Council for consideration. 
 
 
IV. ISSUES REQUIRING ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
A. General Fund Resolutions 
 
1.  Dauphin Island Sailboat Race 
 
Mr. Jim Chambers requested the City contribute $500 for an ad in the program for the Dauphin Island Sailboat 
Race, hosted this year by the Lake Forest Yacht Club.  Mayor Small stated Daphne hosts the event every 4 
years and in the past the City has always made this contribution when the Yacht Club is the host.  He did not 
budget for it this year because he did not realize this was a host year. The race will be April 29 – 30, 2011.  
Discussion that the $ 500 could come from a budget line item. 
     
Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt a resolution to contribute $500 to 
the Dauphin Island Sailboat Race for a program ad.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  
Motion carried. 
 
  
2. Fire Burn Training Facility / Fire Truck / Equipment (to be reimbursed by VFD) - $600,000  
 
Mr. Melvin McCarley discussed the Volunteer Fire Department’s request for $370,000 for a Fire Tower to be 
built at the fire department’s training facility; $150,000 towards the purchase price of a new fire truck; and 
$80,000 for additional needed equipment.  He stated that the Volunteers estimate they should be able to pay 
back $125,000 next year and repay the entire loan in four to five years. 
 
Mr. Joey Holasz noted that this building is needed to be qualified as a training facility for the Alabama Fire 
College.  He discussed that they want this training to be a part of the two-year college system and that after 
completed new hires can be trained onsite and reduce the City’s training cost. 
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt a resolution to loan up to  
$600,000 to the Daphne Volunteer Fire Department to be used as needed for the fire 
burn training facility, new fire truck, and equipment.  Such loan shall be repaid over a 
period of 4-5 years.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 
B.  Appropriations 
 
1.  HVAC @ Library & Recreation Buildings - $35,358 
 
Mr. Frank Barnett discussed that the four rooftop HVAC units (three on the library and one on the recreation 
building) are in need of major repair; three of them have no functioning heat.  These units are twelve years old 
and replacement instead of continued repair is recommended. Unit replacement costs total $34,598, with a 
recommended five year parts warranty for $760.  Mayor Small noted that replacement of these units is on the 10 
year capital plan. 
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating 
$35,358 (purchase price of $34,598 and five year warranty for $760) to replace four 
rooftop HVAC units (three on the library and one on the  recreation building).  
Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 

21



Finance Minutes - 04-11.doc  3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
2.  2011-Q-PW/USED WHEEL LOADER - $38,565 
 
Mr. Johnson discussed the purchase of a used wheel loader.  This is an item that has been leased in the past, 
and it has been determined to be in the City’s best interest to purchase it.  Discussion was made that the wheel 
loader is Heavy Equipment which has a longer life than most equipment. Mr. Johnson noted that next fiscal year 
there would be a savings in the lease budget.  There is $21,600 budgeted for the lease payment, with an 
additional appropriation of $38,565 needed to purchase this equipment for $60,165.  
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt an ordinance appropriating 
$38,565 toward the purchase a used wheel loader.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion 
carried. 
 
C.  Bids 
 
1.  2011-O-POLICE VEHICLES  
 
Sixteen bid invitations were sent out and four sealed bids were received, one being a no-bid.  Captain Bell 
discussed that the low bid ($27,630) was from an out-of-state company and that Chief Carpenter wanted to 
forward the bid to Council for an award recommendation.  Ms. Henson noted that Council had wanted to give 
Daphne dealerships an opportunity to bid. Terry Thompson, bid $28,895 but were not the low bidder and the bid 
also exceeded State Bid + 3% Preference = $28,028.   Bayview Ford submitted a “NO BID” since Ford does not 
have a Police Certified vehicle available at this time.  It was noted that the low bidder is out of state and that the 
Committee at least wants to keep the business in state.  Discussion continued that the bid could be awarded to 
the low bidder, or rejected and purchased from the State bid.  The State bid price is $27,800 each, including 
delivery. 
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council reject the bids for 2011-O-POLICE 
VEHICLES and purchase the vehicles from the State bid list for $27,800 each, including 
delivery. Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 
 
2.  2011-P-RECR/PARKS EXTENDED CAB TRUCK 
 
Sixteen bid invitations were sent out and four sealed bids were received, one being a no-bid. Mr. McKelroy 
noted that originally Council had requested quotes be received from local dealerships to see if they were 
competitive with the state bid contract and the low quote was received from Bayview Ford at $18,688.  Mr. 
McKelroy noted that he had requested $18,688 be appropriated for the purchase of this vehicle and Council 
approved that appropriation but when the official bid came in Bayview bid $18,991.   Mr. McKelroy 
recommended rejecting the bids and purchasing the truck from the State bid list for $18,351 to stay within his 
budgeted monies; this includes delivery. 
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council reject the bids for 2011P-REC/PARKS 
EXTENDED CAB TRUCK and purchase the truck from the State bid list for $18,351, 
including delivery.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 
 
3.  2011-Q-PW/USED WHEEL LOADER 
 
Seven bid invitations were sent out, with one sealed bid received.  
 

22



Finance Minutes - 04-11.doc  4  

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding bid 2011-Q-
PW/USED WHEEL LOADER in the amount of $60,165 to Caterpillar Financial Services 
Corp.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 

 
4.  2011-R-CONCRETE PIPE 
 
Four bid invitations were sent out, with one sealed bid received.  It was discussed that the bid received from 
Hanson Pipe and Precast is competitive with current market conditions, and they are our current vendor.  Ms. 
Henson noted this is an annual bid to purchase needed supplies and inventory. 
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding bid 2011-R-
CONCRETE PIPE at unit costs bid to Hanson Pipe & Precast.  Seconded by Mr. 
Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 
 
5.  2011-S-PW/SKID STEER LOADER (Approved for purchase w/BP grant monies) 
 
Six bid invitations were sent out, with two sealed bids received, one being a no-bid.  Ms. Henson noted that 
another bid was received but it was received late and could not be opened for consideration. Discussions 
continued that $40,000 has been appropriated through BP grant monies for this purchase. 
 
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt a resolution awarding bid 2011-S-
PW/SKID STEER LOADER to Thompson Rental in the amount of $39,900.  Seconded by 
Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 
D.   Lease Financing: 2011-K-28 Cubic Yard High Compaction Automated Refuse 
Collection Truck  
 
Ms. Briley discussed that this bid was awarded last month pending securing favorable leasing terms.  She noted 
Hancock Bank is offering 2.63% interest with a quarterly payment of $11,489.28 for a five year lease.  Two other 
quotes were received with interest rates of 3.57% and 3%. 
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt a resolution accepting the lease 
agreement with Hancock Bank for the lease purchase of one 28CY Garbage truck.  
Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 
E.  Declare City Property Surplus 
 
The following equipment was presented for surplus from Library: 31Chairs, Sled Type / Red Fabric.   
      

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council adopt a resolution declaring the listed 
property surplus and authorizing the Mayor to dispose of such equipment. Seconded 
by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 

 
F.  Discuss Transfer of Funds – Council Training 
 
A Year-to-date budget report of Council training expenditures was presented.  Mr. Yelding stated he would 
transfer funds from his training budget to balance the account for District #3 training.  It was noted that additional 
funds will have to be transferred at a later date for the costs of attending the State League conference in 
Huntsville. 
 

23



Finance Minutes - 04-11.doc  5  

Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council transfer $600.00 from District 1 training 
to District 3 training. Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 

 
G.  Bad Debt Garbage Collections 
 
Ms. Briley discussed that the Utility Board has contracted with a collection agency, Direct Management, Inc.,  to 
collect their bad debt. She explained that they could also attempt collection of the bad garbage debt, if Council 
so chooses.  The collection agency’s fee is 30% of the amount collected.  It was discussed that receiving 70% 
would be better than not receiving anything. 
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to recommend Council authorize the Utility Board to allow their 
collection agency to attempt collection of bad garbage debt, for a fee equal to 30% of 
the amount collected. Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 
 
 
V.   CURRENT BUSINESS 
 
A.  Prodisee Pantry (Emergency Food Program) 
 
A request from Dean Servos, Executive Director of Prodisee Pantry was discussed.  Mr. Boulware noted it was 
his understanding that no specific money amount was requested from the City, but only the need for a show of 
support for the project.  Mr. Boulware suggested sending a letter of support to Prodisee Pantry for the services 
they provide to the citizens of Daphne.  The Mayor noted he would send a letter. 
 
B.   2011-N-Concession Soft Drink Contract Term Clarification – Confirmation Letter 
from Vendor 
 
As a follow-up to Resolution 2011-27 as adopted pending legal review, the following was confirmed. 
 
A letter clarifying the contract term of the concession soft drink contract with Coca-Cola Bottling Co. was sent 
and has been received back signed and notarized to read: “two (2) years and upon mutual agreement between 
the City of Daphne and Coca-Cola the option to extend for a third year”. 
 
 
VI. FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
A.  Treasurer’s Report:  March 31, 2011 
 
The Treasurer’s Report totaling $21,590,791.28 was presented. Ms. Briley noted that $2,100,000 has been 
transferred from the General Fund to Capital Reserve for Road projects and approximately $1,500,000 for debt 
service payments has been made from the Debt Service account.  Mr. Boulware asked if a 
 
Motion by Mr. Yelding to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of March 31, 2011, in the 
amount of $21,590,791.28.  Seconded by Mr. Boulware.  Motion carried. 

 
B.  Sales and Use Taxes: February 28, 2011 
 
Sales and Use Tax Collected for February 2011   -     $ 840,768 
Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for February 2011   -     $ 724,538 
Over Budget (for February)                                    -     $ 116,230 
 
YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $ 460,091  
 
 

24



Finance Minutes - 04-11.doc  6  

 
C.  Lodging Tax Collections, February  2011  
 
The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $43,052.68 collected for February 2011. 
  
D.  Preliminary Financial Statements – September 30, 2010 
 
Ms. Briley distributed preliminary financial reports for FY 2010.  The Combined Balance Sheet of all funds 
reports assets of $122,429,024.78.  The Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balance reports revenues of $27,459,929.46.  The General Fund Summary Statement of Revenues and 
Expenditures reports revenue of $21,689,946, expenditures of $18,101,151, for a total of revenues over 
expenditures of $387,568. The unreserved fund balance increased to $12,089,545.  Ms. Briley also presented a 
list of FY 2010 budget amendments.  It was noted that General Fund revenues were most closely aligned with 
2006/2007 levels.  
 
E.  Report:  New Business Licenses – March 2011 
 
A report showing new businesses licensed in the City for the month of March was presented. 
 
F.  Bills Paid Reports – March 2011 
 
The March Bills Paid Report was included in Packet #2.  
 
 
VII. ADJOURN  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:35 p.m. 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 
Monday, March 7, 2011   5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall 
 

Committee 
Councilman John Lake 

Councilman August A. Palumbo 
Mayor Fred Small 

Richard Merchant, Building Inspector 
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director 

 
Committee Minutes (Summary) 

 
Present:  Councilman John Lake, Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Frank Barnett, 
Maintenance Supervisor; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Merchant, Building 
Inspector; Selena Vaughn, Al Guarisco 
 

A.) Minutes from March Meeting: Motion made to approve minutes from February 
Meeting.  Approved. 
 

B.) Recognition Plaque for Daphne Statue:  Wording submitted for approval – committee 
asked that it go before next council meeting for final approval. 
 

C.) Amphitheater – Selena Vaughan suggested that the city consider using the lodging tax 
dollars for the architectural design and move forward.  But first we should determine 
and discuss our needs and wants for this venue.  There are many things to consider . . . 
so we need a committee to come up with these things and then meet with an architect?  
She asked about the possibility of acquiring the Mareno Property and who from the city 
handles acquisitions?  John  Lake said the city of attorney. John Lake suggested a small 
group of folks write down their vision and bring it back to committee. 

 
Selena Vaughan asked again about the status of finishing the landscaping at May Day. 
Was told by David Cohen that money was available but she can’t get an answer from 
anyone about what monies are specifically left and when it will be done.  
 

D.) Civic Center Report -   Margaret reported that the Civic Center had 5 events in February 
for $15,331 (of this $510 was waived) net. Deposits are $15,450 with YTD discounts 
totaling $11,765.   Bayfront had 8 events with $5293 net and $510 in discounts.  

61



Deposits total $6661 with YTD discounts at $1805. Note:  One event is considered one 
group – the actual events may last 4 days but is reported as one event.  
 
There were requests for refunds for the committee to consider. Committee agreed to 

try and be fair and if the cancellation didn’t affect future bookings go ahead and give 

refund – stick with the policy unless better explanation – ½ back and then if we are able 

to rent the date then full refund. 

Upcoming events:   Sunset Series, Ballroom Dance and Zydeco Festival. 
John Lake asked about possible getting funding for festival from BP.  Margaret reported 
that she had inquired at all levels and was told the monies are no longer available or 
have been turned back into the state.  John asked that she prepare a packet about the 
festival listing sponsorship levels and he would take it with him to Washington to give to 
the congressman and senators.  
 
 

E.) Grants – Ashley Campbell brought before the committee three grant opportunities she 
would like to pursue.  
 
U. S. Fish and Wildlife Coastal Assistance Program - asking for $60,000 grant for 
Invasive species Control Project for Village Point Park and Bay Front Park.   The city to 
contribute $3600 in in-kind labor and use $10,000 from the lodging tax as a match.  
Committee made a motion to move this request to the Finance Committee for 
consideration with a favorable recommendation.  
 
Auburn Marine Extension has asked for a list of projects that could possible qualify for 
grant monies available.  No match from City is necessary.  The other is a list of the 2010 
Baldwin County Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan – opportunities there as well. 
 

F.) Building Inspection Monthly Report – Distributed for review. 
 

G.) Frank Barnett – Discussed the opportunity to obtain an Energy Management Program 
for City Hall building.  It could save us more and he would like to pursue it further.  After 
much discussion John Lake asked Frank to obtain more information and get references 
from other companies that have used the program. 
 

 
 

Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Bailey Yelding, District 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2 

Time: 5:00 PM on January 18, 2011  Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
  The January meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:00 PM   

 

Present: Councilman Bailey Yelding, Councilman John Lake, Councilwoman Cathy 

Barnette, Richard Johnson-Public Works Director, Sandra Cushway-Public Works 

Assistant, Dorothy Morrison-DBC, Jaye Robertson-HMR,  

  

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report – December 2010 reports reviewed 

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – December 2010 reports reviewed. 

C. Correspondence – Arthritis Foundation (Note of appreciation for helping with the Jingle 

Bell Run) 

D. Public Participation – None 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – December 20, 2010 

B. Mosquito Reports – No Activity 
C. Street Sweeper Reports – December reports reviewed.  
D.  
  

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A.  

B.  

C.  

D.  

 

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Public Works Update 

 

VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

A.  

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – November 8, 2010 and December 27, 2010. Minutes reviewed. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – January 7, 2011 minutes reviewed 

B. Top 10 list – January 2011 list reviewed 

C. DBC Update –  

 

IX. ENGINEER REPORT 

A. HMR Update –  

B. Volkert Update – Not Present 

 

V. FUTURE BUSINESS 69



A. Next Meeting – March 21, 2011 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting adjourned at 6:00 PM.  

70



-- ------------

CITY OF DAPHNE
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING
Time: 5:00 PM on February zr, 2011
Location: City Hall Council Chambers

CHAIRMAN - Councilman Bailey Yelding, District I

Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2

Conncilman John Lake, District 3

I. CALL TO ORDER-
The AtlgHst meeting ofthe Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:00 PM

Present: Mayor Fred Small, Councilman Bailey Yelding, Councilman John Lake, Richard
Johnson-Public Works Director, Sandra Cushway-Public Works Assistant,
Dorothy Morrison-DBC

11. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE
A. Work Request Report - January 2011 reports reviewed
B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report - January 2011 reports reviewed.
C. Correspondence - Letter from Doug Burdick (Regarding Garbage and Recycling service)
D. Public Participation - None

Ill. OLD BUSINESS
A. Minutes - January 18, 2011 minutes not included in packet. To be submitted and

reviewed at next meeting.
B. Mosquito Reports - No Activity
C. Street Sweeper Reports - January reports reviewed.
D.

IV. NEW BUSINESS
A. Recommendation to purchase Skid Steer using BP funds - Richard Johnson

recommended that the City purchase a Skid Steer using BP funding. It can be used for
disaster recovery as well as day-to-day usage in the Public Works department. Richard
expressed that he hoped for the council's consideration and support.

B. Loss of Public Works Personnel (Grounds Department) - Richard Johnson reported
that the Ground department is operating at 70% capacity. This department is the first ones
to come in when work needs to be done. They are our front line workers ... the "Marines"
of Public Works. John Lake also addedthey are among the lowest paid workers. Richard
stated that work will continue to get done, but quality will be sacrificed. They simply
won't be able to be as responsive as in the past. One employee on STD, and two on
Worker's Compensation light duty and one crew member resigned.

C. Building Maintenance/Janitorial - Previously we have been able to use city inmates in
the Janitorial department. This option is no longer available. The department currently
has on employee on medical leave (STD). They are operating with one temporary
employee and an employee on loan from the mowing department until March 1st at which
time the mowing department will need their employee back. This needs to be brought to
the Finance Committee, then to the Council Work Session for review. John Lake agreed
that there is definitely a need in this department. Mayor Small commented that we will
not have inmates to help out in various departments and inmates from the Loxley Work
Release Center are approximately $15/day plus we have to feed them lunch. Richard
added that we have only budgeted for City employees.

D. Cooperative Maintenance Agreement (Maintenance of Highway 181; US 90 to
Milton Jones Road). Cost of Services - When Hwy 181 was extended, ALDOT
determined that the City would maintain the area north of 90. Richard presented a

71



r----------------------------~--------- ..._--.--._._-

spreadsheet which breaks down the costs that would be incurred should the City of
Daphne enter into an agreement to maintain Hwy 181 from Hwy 90 south to Milton Jones
Road. John Lake added that we are hoping that the state will allow us to annex this area
into the City. The Crepe Myrtles on Hwy 98 were paid for by "Corridor 98" (money
raised by the Chamber of Commerce). We need to push for this. A corridor at this
location would be a valuable asset to the City.

E. Multi-Hazard Mitigation Plan - Email from Leigh Abbe Ryals, Baldwin County EMA
and Resolution No. 2004-52 reviewed. It would appear that the County dropped the ball.

V. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
A. Public Works Update

VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY
A. Monthly Tonnage Use Report - Potential recycling buyer reneged on his rates.

Negotiations fell apart. Recycling is moving in the right direction. January's tonnage
report reflects 178.8405 tons, bringing in $13,823.87. February is expected to be lower
since it is a shorter month.

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Last Quarter Tonnage Comparison) Numbers are up
from the previous quarter and expected to continue on this trend.

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE
A. Minutes - No minutes submitted.

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE
A. Minutes - February 4,2011 minutes reviewed
B. Top 10 list - February 2011 list reviewed
C. DBC Update - Dorothy commented that their list is coming along nicely and that the

Public Works Department is working very well with the Daphne Beautification
Committee to accomplish their goals.

IX. ENGINEER REPORT
A. HMR Update - Not Present
B. Volkert Update - Not Present

V. FUTURE BUSINESS
A. Next Meeting - March 21, 2011

XI. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 6:00 PM.

72



CITY OF DAPHNE CHAIRMAN - Councilman Bailey Yelding, District 1 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING Councilwoman Cathy Barnette, District 2 

Time: 5:00 PM on March 21, 2011  Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall Council Chambers 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER  
  The March meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:00 PM   

 

Present: Mayor Small, Councilman Bailey Yelding, Councilman John Lake, Councilwoman 

Cathy Barnette, Richard Johnson-Public Works Director, Sandra Cushway-Public 

Works Assistant, Dorothy Morrison-DBC, Tim Lawley-HMR, Elaine Mead-

Daphne Citizen, Frances Harrell-Daphne Citizen 

  

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report – February 2011 reports reviewed 

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – February 2011 report reviewed.  

Councilwoman Barnette commented that she thought that non-routine maintenance would 

go down with the addition of the new Solid Waste trucks.  Richard Johnson responded that 

these costs were associated with the old garbage trucks being used in recycling and that 

the costs would go down once the new recycling trucks are in place. 

C. Correspondence – Memo of appreciation from Janitorial employee Mary Byrne thanking 

the Mowing Supervisor (Carl Jackson) and Mowing employee (Cyndey Ramsay) for their 

assistance during Connie Champion’s absence. 

D. Public Participation – Guy Grimes, LC (AMA Lighting – Re: LED Lighting).  Unable to 

attend meeting due to personal emergency.  Requested to be placed on April 18, 2011 

Public Works Committee Meeting Agenda. 

E. Public Participation – Frances Harrell & Elaine Mead (Sidewalks on Randall Avenue).  

Mrs. Mead stated that sidewalks are desperately needed on Randall Avenue so that 

residents in that area could get out and walk, ride bikes, etc.  As it is, vehicles drive 

excessively fast down that road.  She questioned what made putting sidewalks on 

Whispering Pines Road more of a priority than any other street.  Councilwoman Barnette 

replied that those sidewalks were built under a “Safe Rights to School” grant.  Mrs. Mead 

stated that she contacted the city’s City Clerk, David Cohen, who was very rude to her. 

She feels that something needs to be done to make Randall Avenue a safer place for 

residents.  She asked what funds were used to finance the new round-a-bout at Whispering 

Pines Road and Pollard Road.  Councilwoman Barnette responded that the City financed 

that project.  Councilman Yelding asked what it would cost to build a sidewalk on Randall 

Avenue.  He requested that the Public Works Director, Richard Johnson get 

measurements.  Richard stated that we have insufficient ROW on Randall Avenue as well 

as elevation changes which makes it difficult to simply build a sidewalk.  Councilman 

Yelding stated that no one is against putting a sidewalk on Randall Avenue.  We just need 

to look into the feasibility of it.  Mrs. Mead also stated that she would also like to see 

speed bumps on Randall Avenue to slow traffic down.  Councilwoman Barnette stated she 

thought that HMR had previously done a feasibility study on putting sidewalks on Randall 

Avenue.  Richard Johnson to get with HMR and determine whether this is feasible or not 

and report back at the next meeting.  Mrs. Mead and Mrs. Harrell were invited to attend 

the next meeting on April 18
th

 to see what was determined. 

F. Public Participation – Victoria Phelps spoke in support of Richard Johnson, Public 

Works Director.  She feels that the committee should recommend that employees in Public 

Works should be replaced.  The work that these employees do make a direct impact on 73



how the city looks. 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – January 18, 2011 Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to accept the 

minutes from the January 18, 2011 Public Works Committee meeting.  Motion was 

seconded by Councilman Lake.   

B. Minutes – February 21, 2011 Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to accept the 

minutes from the February 21, 2011 Public Works Committee meeting.  Motion was 

seconded by Councilman Lake. 

C. Mosquito Reports – No Activity 
D. Street Sweeper Reports – February 2011 reports reviewed.   
  

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Public Works Personnel Request – Mechanical Maintenance Department.  Richard 

Johnson stated that the Building Maintenance/Janitorial staffing needs will go before the 

council at tonight’s meeting.  The department is working towards having one person 

dedicated to cleaning the restrooms at all of the parks and the Recreation Center.  Mayor 

Small added that he feels that the Recreation Department needs to be in charge of that.  He 

added that Custodian, Mary Byrne, comes up to the parks on her own time on weekends to 

ensure that the restrooms at the parks are clean and stocked.  Richard stated that we were 

previously able to utilize city inmates in that department to help with the work load, but 

that city inmates are no longer available.  Councilwoman Barnette asked whether we ever 

use employees that are on light duty to help out in Janitorial.  Richard responded that 

although we have several employees on light duty, none are able to fill the requirements 

necessary to help out in that department.  The Grounds department is working with fewer 

employees than ever before.  One of the Crew Leaders was involved in a vehicle accident 

just this morning and is expected to be out for a couple of weeks.  He added that there is 

an expectance of excellence and that crews are doing more work with fewer resources.  

Councilman Yelding stated that the concept was to not increase personnel by replacing 

them when someone leaves.  Richard reminded the committee that most of the employees 

in the Grounds Department started in that department and grew with the City.  

Councilman Lake added that the extra workload on jobs that work out in the elements are 

impacted more than office workers when they have to work extra hard due to lack of 

staffing. 

B. Johnson Road – Councilman Yelding stated that some Spruce trees on Johnson road were 

recently removed which greatly improved visibility.  He would like to see the surrounding 

area “scrub” cleaned up a little bit more. 

 

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Highway 181 Maintenance Agreement Pending Annexation – Richard Johnson stated 

that he has concluded that there is no formal agreement for the City to maintain Highway 

98.  A letter was sent expressing interest in annexation. Richard doesn’t feel that it is in 

the best interest of the City to enter into an agreement unless it is contingent on 

annexation.  He referred to the enclosed spreadsheet which breaks down the city’s annual 

maintenance costs.  The equipment cost would be an upfront cost.  Employee costs would 

be every years.  Councilwoman Barnette asked what the benefit of this agreement is.  

Richard stated that there was no benefit to the City.  Police would be needed to patrol the 

extra area.  Councilman Yelding stated that Highway 181 is a major north/south corridor 

and should be our first step in annexing to the east.  Councilman Lake added that Daphne 

can only grow to the east.  In light of mistakes made on Highway 98, he feels that 
74



Highway 181 is going to be a major business corridor.  If we don’t annex it, some other 

municipality will.  Richard Johnson requested a motion to continue discussion at the next 

meeting or authorize the Mayor to proceed.  Councilwoman Barnette made a motion to 

take to the next council work session for discussion (April). 

B. Will ask Tracey Miller, Solid Waste Coordinator to contact the utility department 

regarding putting a “stuffer” in with the utility bills letting citizens know all of the 

recyclables that we are now accepting.   Councilwoman Barnette wanted to acknowledge 

Tracey’s hard work on the grant.  She put a lot of personal time and effort into this grant 

and we are hopeful that the city will receive this grant. 

 

VI. SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report (January 31 – February 25, 2011) 

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Last Quarter Tonnage Comparison) 

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – January 10, 2011. Minutes reviewed. 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes – March 4, 2011 minutes reviewed 

B. Top 10 list – March 2011 list reviewed 

C. DBC Update – Dorothy asked what was going to be planted in place of the junipers being 

removed from the nosepoints on Highway 98.  Richard stated that at this time nothing is 

being planted.  Area is being sodded. 

 

IX. ENGINEER REPORT 

A. HMR Update –  No report 

B. Volkert Update – Not Present 

 

V. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting – April 18, 2011 

 

XI. ADJOURNMENT   

The meeting adjourned at 6:10 PM.  

75



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

76



77



78



79



80



 

 

March 28, 2011 

CITY OF DAPHNE, AL  

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD MEETING 6:00 P.M. at  Daphne City Hall, 

1705 Main Street, Daphne, AL in conference room. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

 

Members present – Tom Byrnes, Dan Romanchuk, Toni Fassbender, Doug Bailey, Pokey Miller, 

and Dennis Kerney 

 

Also present – David Cohen, Robert Ingram, and Josh Thornton 

 

2. OLD BUSINESS 

 

Doug Bailey stated that a grant writer would be available to come to the May IDB meeting. 

 

3.  TREASURERS REPORT 

 

Nominations for treasurer 

 

Motion by Mr. Byrnes Seconded by Mr. Kerney  To appoint Dan 

Romanchuk as treasurer 

 

ALL IN FAVOR  NONE OPPOSED   MOTION CARRIED 

 

4.   NEW BUSINESS 

 

Doug Bailey discussed the availability of property that the IDB could acquire in around the City 

of Daphne.  The board request that he compile a list of suitable properties to be discussed at the 

next meeting. 

    

5.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 

Baldwin County Alliance Update 

 

HK Automobile Plant is currently working on its finance and should know in the next 

90 days whether this project is viable. 

 

EADS announced the purchase of a Canadian helicopter repair facility in Andalusia 

which continues the expansion in the area. 

 

Austal’s Expansion of 2000 additional employees will have immediate impact for the 

city. 

 

 

81



 

 

5. ADJOURN 

 

Motion by Mr. Byrnes Seconded by Mr. Romanchuk To adjourn 

 

ALL IN FAVOR  NONE OPPOSED   MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING 

 ADJOURNED AT  6:40 P.M. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________ 

David L. Cohen, Secretary 

 

Approved: 

________________________ 

Toni Fassbender, Chairman 

82



Daphne Public Library Board 

January 6, 2011 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

 In Attendance: 

 

Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn; Library Board 

Members Windrila Longmire, Andre LaPalme, and Chantal Booth. 

 

1) Call to Order: 

 

After a quorum was established, Library Board Chairman Jan Blankenhorn called 

the meeting to order at 4:07 pm.  

 

2) Reading and Approval of the Minutes: 

 

The minutes of the November meeting were approved (no December meeting held); 

motion made by Wendy and seconded by Andre.  Motion passed. 

 

3) Chairman’s Report/Comments: 

 

Jan stated that everything seemed to be going well with the library and that the 

Christmas gift tree had been a success. 

 

4) Library Director's Report: 

 

Tonja went over the highlights of the December statistical report.  

 

For December 2010, total patronage was down 8.76% to 14,305 compared with 

15,679 for December, 2009.  December 2010 circulation was down 4.70% at 21,290 

compared to 22,341 in December 2009.  Overall circulation year-to-date was 

70,905 for December 2010, compared to 71,923 for this time in 2009.  A total of 

83 patrons were given library cards or renewed cards and volunteers gave 281 

hours to the library in December.  Meeting room attendance was 534 and computer 

users numbered 2370, almost double from last year’s December number of 1,338. 

 

Tonja discussed the computer software, online databases and computer classes, as 

well as the new shelving sponsored by the Friends.  She announced the upcoming 

workshop for the ADAH grant and the annual workshop at APLS to be in compliance 

with State Aid procedures. 

 

83



5) Public Participation 

 

Jan announced that the Friends had their annual meeting coming up at 2:00 pm on 

January 14, and that everyone was welcome.  She stated that the Friends had 

supported the library’s public programming and book purchases in 2010, and that 

they had voted to continue their support in 2011.  Jan said the Book Shop was doing 

well and discussed FODL memberships. 

 

6) Other Business 

 

None. 

 

7) Adjourned 

 

The meeting was adjourned by Jan at 4:33 pm. 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by T. Young, January 28, 2011 

84



Daphne Public Library Board 

February 3, 2011 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 In Attendance: 

 

Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn; Library Board Members Windrila 

Longmire, Andre LaPalme, and Jim Bodman; FODL VP Carol Simmons; City Council Liaison Gus Palumbo. 

 

1) Call to Order: 

After a quorum was established, Library Board Chairman Jan Blankenhorn called the meeting to order 

at 4:05 pm.  

 

2) Reading and Approval of the Minutes: 

The minutes of the January meeting were approved; motion made by Windrila and seconded by Jim.  

Motion passed. 

 

3) Chairman’s Report/Comments: 

Jan discussed the Foundation meeting set for May 23 at 4:00 pm.  She announced that the Foundation 

as yet had no new officers and was presently doing no fundraising.  She announced that the Foundation 

Board needs new member suggestions. 

 

4) Library Director's Report: 

Tonja went over the highlights of the January statistical report.  

 

For January 2011, total patronage was up 5.25% to 16,809 compared with 15,971 for January, 2010.  

January 2011 circulation was up 4.33% at 24,916 compared to 23,881 in January 2010.  Overall 

circulation year-to-date was 95,804 for January 2011, compared to 95,821 for this time in 2010.  A 

total of 210 patrons were given library cards or renewed cards, and volunteers gave 346 hours to the 

library in January.  Meeting room attendance was 683 and computer users numbered 2,681, almost 

double from last year’s January number of 1,361. 

 

5) Public Participation 

Carol announced that it was time for the Friends FODL membership sign-up and that a poster 

announcing lifetime memberships was hanging in the Book Shop.  She announced the new FODL 

President Jim Morris, and that two new members had been elected to the FODL Board. 

 

Gus announced that Operation paperback has been picked up as a project by the Daphne High School 

Key Club and that they have collected over 100 items for the project. 

 

6) Other Business 

Jim stated that the Wayne Flynt talk in December had been a success. 

 

Tonja stated that the library had added several new databases and new software with IMLS & LSTA 

grant funds, including Adobe Elements, Rosetta Stone Spanish Levels 1, 2, & 3; Ancestry, Heritage 

Quest and Career Cruising. 

 

7) Adjourned 

The meeting was adjourned by Jan at 4:24 pm. 

 

Respectfully submitted by T. Young, February 17, 2011 

85



Daphne Public Library Board 

March 3, 2011 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 In Attendance: 

 

Library Director Tonja Young; Board Chair Jan Blankenhorn; Library Board Members Windrila 

Longmire, Andre LaPalme, Chantal Booth and Jim Bodman; FODL President Jim Morris; City Council 

Liaison Gus Palumbo. 

 

1) Call to Order: 

After a quorum was established, Library Board Chairman Jan called the meeting to order at 4:10 pm.   

The new President of the Friends of the Daphne Library Board, Jim Morris, was welcomed.   

 

2) Reading and Approval of the Minutes: 

The minutes of the February meeting were approved; motion made by Andre and seconded by Chantal.  

Motion passed. 

 

3) Chairman’s Report/Comments: 

Jan stated that she didn’t have much to report except that everything was going well at the library. 

 

4) Library Director's Report: 

Tonja went over the highlights of the February statistical report.  

 

For February 2011, total patronage was down 2.78% to 16,507 compared with 17,020 for February, 

2010.  February 2011 circulation was down 4.72% at 23,152 compared to 24,298 in February 2010.  

Overall circulation year-to-date was 118,973 for February 2011, compared to 120,102 for this time in 

2010.  A total of 129 patrons were given library cards or renewed cards, and volunteers gave 355.5 

hours to the library in February.  Meeting room attendance was 594 and computer users numbered 

2589, almost double from last year’s February number of 1,227. 

 

Tonja stated that the library statistics had been steadily growing for several years since she has 

been in the Director position, and that it was probably inevitable that the statistical numbers would 

flatten out or fluctuate as they recently have.  Library usage generally increases dramatically during 

the late spring and summer due to reading programs, so we should have an increase soon. 

 

Tonja also announced that the library is ordering Rosetta Stone German and French since the Rosetta 

Stone Spanish has been received positively by the community.  She also stated that the library should 

go ‘live’ in May on Alabama’s Camellia Net, a consortium which allows downloads of e-books, audio books 

and music from member libraries across Alabama.  Ms. Young briefly discussed the Library of 

Congress exhibit and hoped that everyone might be able to attend. 

 

5) Public Participation 

Jim Morris announced that because the role of the Friends was to support the library with volunteers 

and to raise funds for the library through the Book Shop and Book Sales, the Friends planned to 

continue to support library events and special needs.  He stated that there would be a Book Sale 

outside the library on March 19.  Jim also mentioned that the Friends were handling the reception for 

the Library of Congress exhibit on March 11 and had everything covered. 

 

Gus suggested that the library look into purchasing Rosetta Stone Italian due to the Italian 

background of many families in the Daphne area. 

86



 

Gus mentioned an ordinance passed by the council allowing online payments and donations.  The group 

discussed the use of Pay Pal to receive online donations for operating and/or capital expenses. 

 

6) Other Business 

 

Jim Bodman made a donation for the library to purchase another coffee dispenser for use during 

special events. 

 

7) Adjourned 

The motion to adjourn was made by Windrila and the meeting adjourned at 5:06 pm. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by T. Young, March 28, 2011 

87



MINUTES - 1 

 

APPROVED MINUTES 

Utilities Board Meeting 

         City of Daphne Council Chambers    February 23, 2011    5:00 p.m. 
        

I. CALL TO ORDER 
The regular February, 2011, Board meeting for the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne was held on February 23, 2011 
and called to order by Secretary/Treasurer Lon Johnston, at 5:06 p.m. 

 

II. ROLL CALL 
      MEMBERS PRESENT: Lon Johnston, Secretary/Treasurer 
 Ron Scott          -    arrived at 5:08 p.m. 
 Fred Small, Mayor 
 
 OTHERS ABSENT: Robert Segalla, Chairman 
 Fenton E. Jenkins, Vice Chairman 
 

 OTHERS PRESENT: Tony Hoffman –  for Jerry Speegle 
  Rob McElroy – General Manager 
  Danny Lyndall – Operations Manager  
  Pam Kellum – Finance Department 
  Drew Klumpp – Administrative Services Manager 
  Melinda Immel – Volkert & Associates 
  Tim Patton – Volkert & Associates 
  Doug Bailey – HMR  
  Arlene Ethier – Operations Clerk 
  Lori Scharles – Executive Assistant  
  Teresa Logiotatos - Finance Manager 
 

OTHERS ABSENT:  Jerry Speegle – Board Attorney  
 Deloris Brown – Human Resources Manager 
 Ray Moore - HMR 
   

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The Secretary/Treasurer led the Board and meeting attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES        

a. Utilities Board Minutes from January 26, 2011: 
The Secretary/Treasurer inquired if there were any corrections noted for the submitted Minutes from the January 26, 
2011, Utilities Board meeting.  
   

MOTION BY Mayor Fred Small to approve the submitted Minutes for January 26, 2011; Seconded 
by Ron Scott. 

AYE: JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SMALL          ABSENT:  JENKINS , SEGALLA             ABSTAIN:        

 MOTION CARRIED 

 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
88



MINUTES - 2 

a. Central Services Building – Update  
Rob McElroy announced that the groundbreaking took place on the property and was published in the newspaper. 

 
b. Spanish Fort Sewer Franchise issues 

No updated information was reported. 
 

c. 19 Acres - Daphne Utilities property  
Danny Lyndall updated the Board that this issue was going before the Planning Commission on the 24th for an 
administrative update to the Planning Commissioners about the property swap.  Mr. Lyndall also clarified that the 
Johnson Road property will be subdivided and that it will not be necessary to go through the full voting process 
because it is a public-use subdivision.  Mr. Lyndall then explained that this is the first step in the process with the 
properties committee.   

 

d. Items in Abeyance: 
1. Gas Franchise Agreement – No current information was reported. 
2.   Sewer Only Cutoff Policy – No updated information was reported. 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS – No New Business was reported. 
 

VII. BOARD ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 Mr. Hoffman had nothing further to add to his report. 
 

VIII. FINANCIAL REPORT 
Pam Kellum reviewed the financials for the Board members.  No additional questions were asked. 
 

IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
a. GM Report 
 Rob McElroy had nothing further to add to his report.  Drew Klumpp commented on the Human Resources report in 

Deloris Brown’s absence the promotion of Mr. Martin Dale to the Water Distribution Supervisor.  Mr. Klumpp also 
reviewed for the Board the proposal to increase the reconnect fees for delinquent accounts from $40 to $50 during 
business hours, and $50 to $60 after business hours.  He also announced that the answering service will be changed to 
another company in order to provide enhanced after-hours services for our customers.  Mr. Scott requested that the 
increase cost be justifiable.  Mr. Johnston inquired as to the most recent review of the bad-check charge policy.  Mr. 
Klumpp stated that it had been reviewed recently and the fee is $35.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MOTION BY Ron Scott for the increase in service reconnect fee for delinquent customers as 

proposed.  Seconded by   
Mayor Fred Small. 
AYE: JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SMALL      ABSENT:  SEGALLA, JENKINS ABSTAIN:        

 MOTION CARRIED 

 

b. Operations Report 
Danny Lyndall had nothing further to add the Operations Report.   
 
Mr. Scott inquired as to the review and/or bid proposals for the Utilities’ liability insurance.  Mrs. Logiotatos stated 
that a review will be forthcoming in the upcoming year. 
 
Mr. Klumpp answered an inquiry from Mr. Johnston regarding the water meter rebuilds. 
 
Melinda Immel of Volkert & Associates announced the acceptance of bids for the proposed well that will be situated 
on the site of the new Central Services Facility and recommended the Griner Drilling Service, Inc. of Spanish Fort for 
the project in the amount of $429,440.00. 

89



MINUTES - 3 

   
 

MOTION BY Ron Scott to accept Volkert’s recommendation to award the bid for the new well to 

be located on Well Road  
at the Central Services Facility to Griner Drilling Services in the amount of $429,440.00.  

Seconded by Mayor Fred Small. 
AYE: JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SMALL      ABSENT:  SEGALLA, JENKINS ABSTAIN:        

 MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
Doug Bailey from HMR had nothing further to add to his report. 
 

X. BOARD ACTION –  None 

XI. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  – None 

XII. BOARD COMMENTS – None 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOTION BY Mayor Fred Small to adjourn the meeting. Seconded by Ron Scott. 
AYE: JOHNSTON, SCOTT, SMALL        ABSENT: SEGALLA, JENKINS  ABSTAIN:        

 MOTION CARRIED 

 

The meeting adjourned at 5:31 pm.  

90



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

104



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

105



RESOLUTION NO.  2011-34 
2011-Q-PW/USED WHEEL LOADER  

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the PW / USED 
WHEEL LOADER will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the PW / USED WHEEL LOADER 
and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the PW / USED WHEEL LOADER be 
awarded to Caterpillar Financial Services Corp (Thompson Tractor Co., Inc.). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Caterpillar Financial Services Corp (Thompson Tractor Co., 
Inc.) for the amount of $60,165 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO: 2011-
Q- PW / USED WHEEL LOADER. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

     

 
  _________________________________ 

                                                                        Fred Small, Mayor 
                    
  

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 
 
                                                                           

106



RESOLUTION NO.  2011-35 

2011-R-CONCRETE PIPE 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the CONCRETE 
PIPE will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the CONCRETE PIPE and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the CONCRETE PIPE be awarded to 
Hanson Pipe & Precast. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Hanson Pipe & Precast for unit cost listed as attached herein 
and made a part hereof for BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2011-R-CONCRETE 
PIPE. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA,           day of _               _, 2011. 
 
 

________________________________ 
                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
           

     
                                                                                                                                                                                         

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
        
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

107



108



RESOLUTION NO.  2011-36 
2011-S-PW / SKID STEER LOADER 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the PW / SKID 
STEER LOADER will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Monies have been approved and appropriated (Resolution 2011-19) 

from BP Grant monies for the purchase of such Skid Steer Loader; and 

 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the PW / SKID STEER LOADER and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the PW / SKID STEER LOADER be 
awarded to Thompson Tractor Co., Inc. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of Thompson Tractor Co., Inc. for the amount of $39,900 as 
specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO: 2011-S- PW / SKID STEER LOADER 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS            day of                     , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

     

 
  _________________________________ 

                                                                        Fred Small, Mayor 
                     
  

 

 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 
 
                                                                           

109



110



111



112



RESOLUTION 2011 - 38 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT TAG/VEH# DESCRIPTION VIN # / SERIAL # 

Library  CHAIR, SLED TYPE / RED FABRIC (31)  
    

    
    

    
    
    

 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                   , 2011. 
 
           

________________________________ 

                                                                              Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 

       

                                                                                                                                                                                            

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Fred Small, Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

113



RESOLUTION NO.  2011-39 

 
AGREEMENT-DAPHNE VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS ASSOC, INC. 

FD Burn Building Training Center / Fire Truck / & Equipment 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Daphne recognize the 
importance of the Daphne Volunteer Firefighters Association, Inc. (“Volunteers”) 
in rendering fire fighting services in the City of Daphne; and 
 
WHEREAS, from time to time, the Volunteers and City have cooperated in the 
purchase and acquisition of fire fighting equipment and facilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne recognizes the mutual public safety benefit of 
such cooperation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne wishes to continue to cooperate with the 
Volunteers in the acquisition of equipment and improvements to the Burn 
Building Training Center. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 

THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby  
 

1) agree to loan, over a period of time not to exceed five years, the 
Daphne Volunteer Firefighters Association up to $600,000 for the construction of 
a Burn Building Training Center and the purchase of a Truck and Equipment,  
AND 

2)  the Agreement between the City of Daphne and the Daphne Volunteer 
Firefighters Association, Inc as attached hereto and made a part hereof, is 
hereby approved and the Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into such 
Agreement. 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS                  day of                  , 2011 
 

                                                              
________________________________ 

                                                                       Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                                  

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
         
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 
 

114



 

 

 

AGREEMENT-DAPHNE VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS ASSN., INC. 

AND  

CITY OF DAPHNE 
 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT made this ________day of __________, 2011, by and between 
the DAPHNE VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS ASSN., INC., hereinafter referred to as 
the “Volunteers”, and THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereinafter referred to as the “City”. 
 
WHEREAS, the Daphne Volunteer Firefighters Assn., Inc. has determined that the 
construction of a Fire Burn Training Center and purchase of Fire Truck & Equipment is 
necessary in order to provide firefighter training and continue to meet the increasing fire 
protection needs of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City agrees to solicit bids, as required, for the Fire Burn Training 
Center, the fire truck and equipment on behalf of the Volunteers. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Agreement between the Volunteers and the City is set forth 
as follows: 
 

1. The City shall enter into this agreement for a loan to the Volunteers in an 
amount up to $600,000 for the construction of a Fire Burn Training Center 
and purchase of a Fire Truck & Equipment. 

  
2. The City shall not provide any funds greater than the $ 600,000 loan for such 

purposes unless such sums are appropriated by the City Council. 
 

3. The City shall bid and contract for such purposes with reimbursements to be 
made by the Volunteers to the City at least annually. 

 
4.  It is understood and agreed upon by the City and the Volunteers that the    
     Fire Burn Training Center, Truck & Equipment will be the property of the City     
     upon completion/purchase. 

 
5. The City will provide, and include in its annual insurance policy, insurance  
     coverage for the Fire Burn Training Center, Truck & Equipment. 

 
6. It is further understood and agreed upon by the City and the Volunteers that  
      this is a binding legal agreement. 

 
 
 

115



 
 
 
 
     Agreement dated ______ day of ________, 2011. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                           DAPHNE VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTERS ASSN., INC.                        

                                           BY:  

 
            _________________________________ 
                                                   Melvin McCarley, Chief 
 
 
                                                  _________________________________ 
                                                   Charlie Owens, Assistant Chief 
 
 
                                                  _________________________________ 
                                                   Tom Walker, Treasurer 
                                                   
 ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________ 
Tommy Bertagnolli, Secretary 
 
 
                                                   CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 
 
                                                   BY: _________________________ 
                                                           Fred Small, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk 

116



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-40 
 

 Community Contributions: Lake Forest Yacht Club 
2011 Sailboat Race 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne recognizes the health, safety, 
and welfare benefits derived by the citizens of Daphne through the services 
performed by community agencies and the promotion of the City of Daphne 
fostered by community events; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City of Daphne has historically contributed funds to the Lake 
Forest Yacht Club as they host the Sailboat Race every 4 years and act as good 
will ambassadors for the City of Daphne; and 
 
WHEREAS, such Sailboat Race will take place April 29 - 30, 2011. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne 
that the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute the agreement 
necessary for the City to make a contribution in the amount of $ 500 to the Lake 
Forest Yacht Club for hosting the Sailboat Race and representing the City of 
Daphne. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED  by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this ________ day of _______________, 2011. 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
       
 
      _______________________________ 
      Fred Small, Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 
 

117



 
 
 
 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2011-41 
 
 ENNIS PROPERTY ACQUISITION 
  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has determined that it would 

be in the best interest of the citizens of Daphne to acquire additional bay front property for public use 
to benefit the community in many ways for years to come; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne recognizes the need to hire an appraiser  
to appraise the Ennis property for the acquisition of certain bay front property located on the west 
side of the City=s Campbell’s Swamp property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne request that a letter stating the city’s 

intention to purchase the Ennis’s property by means of NRDA Funds be sent to Congressman Joe 
Bonner. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama does hereby authorize the mayor to hire an appraiser, and send a formal letter requesting 
the assistance from Congressman Joe Bonner for the acquisition of property along Mobile Bay. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ______ day of ___________, 2011.     
 
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Cathy S. Barnette 

Council Vice President 
         
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Fred Small 

Mayor 
   

 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
David L. Cohen 
City Clerk, MMC 
 

118



 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE 2011-30 

 

 AN ORDINANCE APPROVING HIRING FREEZE EXCEPTION: 

Grounds Public Service Worker 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 as adopted on December 20, 2010 imposed a hiring freeze 
on all Fiscal 2011 vacant positions unless the City Council gives express approval for the 
position to be filled; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Director submitted a request to the Mayor to fill the recently 
vacated position of Grounds Public Service Worker; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor did approve such request and has requested that the City Council 
favorably approve the advertisement and hiring of a Grounds Public Service Worker. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that an amendment to the section of Ordinance 2010-71 regarding the hiring 
freeze is hereby approved for the filling of the Grounds Public Service Worker position that 
was recently vacated (estimated annual cost, including benefits, for entry level $ 31,130-  
$ 33,137); and 
 
FURTHERMORE, that the position shall be filled in accordance with all provisions of the 
Employee Handbook and the related Employee Pay Scale.  
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this  
 ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
 
             
      ____________________________________ 
      Fred Small, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
                            ________ ____  
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 
 
 

119



ORDINANCE 2011-31 
 
 

Mobile Bay National Estuary Program 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation to the Mobile 
Bay National Estuary Program (MBNEP); and 
 
WHEREAS,  the MBNEP is instrumental in addressing environmental challenges in 
Daphne through its various programs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to make a $ 10,000 contribution to the MBNEP. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $ 10,000 for a contribution to the 
MBNEP.  Furthermore, the Mayor is authorized to execute an agreement, on behalf 
of the City of Daphne, as necessary for such purpose.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk,  MMC 

120



 1 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
BALDWIN COUNTY ) 
CITY OF DAPHNE  ) 
 

MUNICIPAL AGENCY FUNDING CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this the ____ day of __________, 2011, 
by and between the CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation, of the State of 
Alabama (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "City" or "the City"), and the Mobile Bay 
National Estuary Program,  (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “Agency"): 
 
 
W-I-T-N-E-S-S-E-T-H 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has requested that the City of Daphne appropriate funds 
for its use for the benefit, either directly or indirectly, of the residents of the City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne desires to have the Agency perform certain 
services during the 2010-2011 fiscal year. 
 
 THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits moving each to the other, it is 
mutually agreed by and between the City and the Agency as follows: 
 
I. AUTHORITY 
 
 Agency represents and warrants to City that it is authorized by law to receive 
funding from City and that such funding will not be in violation of Article IV, Section 94, 
or amendments thereto, of the Constitution of Alabama, 1901, or any other 
constitutional or statutory provision. 
 
Agency further warrants that funding from the City will only be used to perform public 
services and/or acts which the City is otherwise authorized to perform or to fund itself. 
 
II. SERVICES 
 
 The Agency shall provide the following public services within the Corporate 
Limits of the City of Daphne: 
 
1)  Address regional environmental challenges such as comprehensive land use 
planning, storm water management, and smart growth practices by helping bay 
communities develop the tools necessary to strike a balance between growth and 
development and the wise use and protection of water, land, and living resources; AND 
2)  Promote the use of sound, science-based information; AND 
3) Initiate programs and projects that benefit both the citizens and the environment; 
AND 
4) Implement the community-developed Comprehensive Conservation and 
Management Plan. 
 

121



 2 

 If Agency provides public services both inside and outside the Corporate Limits 
of the City, then, if requested by the City or its representative, it shall submit an audit 
report demonstrating that services by the Agency, at least to the extent of the funding 
herein, shall be and were provided within the Corporate Limits of the City, including an 
identification of the number of City residents served by said agency. 
 
III.  APPROPRIATION 
 
 The City shall appropriate funds to the Agency in the following amount for the 
2010-2011 fiscal year: $ 10,000 (Ten Thousand Dollars), said amount to be paid 
pursuant to a method determined by the Finance Director of the City.  The Finance 
Director of the City or his/her designee shall be the representative of the City for the 
administration and implementation of the provisions hereof on behalf of the City. 
 
IV.  SEPARATE AGREEMENTS 
 
 The City shall be under no obligation to the Agency except to the extent set out 
expressly in this Agreement.  Provided, however, in the event there is a separate valid 
written agreement between the City and Agency, then this Funding Agreement is 
supplemental thereto and in the event of a conflict the terms of the latest written 
agreement shall prevail. 
 
V.  TERM; TERMINATION 
 
 The terms of this Agreement shall commerce as of the 1st day of October, 2010, 
and shall continue in force until the 30th day of September, 2011, unless sooner 
terminated.  Provided, however, in the event a new contract is not executed by the 
commencement of the new fiscal year, the City may elect to continue funding if 
appropriated by budget or budget continuation provisions and if so, the Agency agrees 
to remain bound by the terms of this Agreement and to continue to provide all services 
hereunder until a new funding contract is executed. The contract is otherwise 
terminated as set forth herein or if the official City budget does not contain an 
appropriation for the Agency.  Either party to this Agreement may, with or without cause, 
terminate this Agreement as to the first day of any month by giving the other party no 
less than thirty (30) days written notice thereof.  In event of termination by either party, 
the Agency shall refund to the City an amount equal to the excess of the total amount 
appropriated over an amount which bears the same ratio to the total amount 
appropriated as the month(s) actually performed bear to the total months covered by 
this Agreement. 
 
 
 
VI.  NON-DISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE 
 
 This Agency hereby covenants and agrees that in performing its responsibilities 
and obligations hereunder, the Agency, its officers, agents and employees will not, on 
the grounds of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or disability, discriminate or 
permit discrimination against any person or group of persons, in any manner.  The 

122



 3 

Agency further agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal ordinances and 
regulations, including but not limited to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and any regulations promulgated 
thereunder.  The Agency further agrees to appoint an ADA coordinator.  Said 
coordinator will be responsible for ensuring that the Agency is in compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and will advise the City of Daphne ADA Coordinator for 
services and programs as to the Agency's state of compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 
VII.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 It is agreed between the City and the Agency that the Agency is an independent 
contractor.  Neither the City nor its officers, agents or employees shall be liable for 
damages, claims, actions, or causes of action, brought against the Agency, for the 
activities of the Agency. 
 
 Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Agreement, it is agreed that the City 
has no financial interest in the business of Agency, and shall not be liable for any debts 
or obligations incurred by Agency, nor shall the City be deemed or construed to be 
partner, joint adventurer or otherwise interested party in the assets of Agency, or profits 
earned or derived by Agency, nor shall Agency at any time or times use the name or 
credit of the City in purchasing or attempting to purchase any equipment, supplies, or 
other thing or things whatsoever. 
 
 Agency in the performance of its operations and obligations hereunder shall not 
be deemed to be the agent of the City but shall be deemed to be an independent 
contractor in every respect and shall take all steps at its own expense as City may from 
time to time request to indicate that it is an independent contractor.  City does not and 
will not assume any responsibility for the means by which or manner in which services 
by Agency, provided for herein, are performed, but on the contrary, Agency shall be 
wholly responsible therefore. 
 
VIII.  INDEMNITY 
 
 The Agency hereby covenants with the City that it will indemnify and hold the City 
and its officers, agents and employees harmless for or on account of any claim, suit, 
cause of action or judgment arising out of or in any manner associated with this 
Agreement or services provided or performed by Agency or any of its officers, agents or 
employees. 
 
IX.  NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
 
 It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that they be the only parties to the 
Agreement and to expressly exclude third party beneficiaries; no person not a party to 
the Agreement may claim benefits under the Agreement. 
 
 
X.  SERVICE AREA 

123



 4 

 
 Agency shall submit, if requested by the City, to the Office of the Finance 
Director of the City, a written monthly report of the Agency's activities and expenditures, 
including, but not limited to, information demonstrating that services by the Agency 
within the Corporate Limits of the City at least equal, if not exceed, the funding from the 
City for that month.  Should the City determine at any time during the term of this 
Contract that Agency is not providing services within the City Corporate Limits at least 
equal to the funding herein, then the City may terminate this Agreement immediately.  
Upon such termination, Agency may be, at the sole discretion of the City, required to 
refund any funds deemed by the City not to have been appropriately expended within 
the Corporate Limits. 
 
XI.  BOOKS AND RECORDS/REPORTS 
 
 Agency shall, at the request of the City, throw open and provide, at a time and 
place designated by the City, all books, records, accounts, statements and other 
documents as needed by the City to enable it to conduct a financial and/or operational 
review or audit of agency operations and/or finances.  If Agency refuses to honor the 
City's request within ten (10) days, it shall refund to the City all funds appropriated to it 
during the term of the contract.  All reports, evaluations and audits required shall be 
provided by Agency to any person appointed by the City or the Mayor to the Agency's 
governing body. 
 
XII.  AUDIT 
 
 The City may require Agency to have its financial records audited by an 
independent CPA firm.  A copy of the audited financial statements will be mailed to the 
City's Finance Director as soon as possible after the statements are issued. 
 
XIII.  OPEN MEETING, PUBLIC RECORDS, COMPETITIVE BIDS 
AND OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
 A. As Agency is receiving public funds and/or other things of public value, 
including in-kind services, use of City employees and/or equipment from the City 
pursuant to this agreement, Agency agrees as follows: 
 
 1. To the same and like extent as is applicable to the City of Daphne, all 
meetings of the governing or controlling body of the Agency or any committee or 
subcommittee thereof shall be open to the public when any issue or matter involving or 
relating directly or indirectly to this Agreement is discussed or considered and when 
there is any discussion or consideration of the use of public funds or things of value 
provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 2. Public Records.  To the same and like extent as is applicable to the City of 
Daphne pursuant to State law, all records, documents, letters, minutes, memoranda, 
etc. of the Agency shall be open to public inspection and copying when the same 
pertain to any issue or matter involving or relating directly or indirectly to the 
performance by Agency of this Agreement or the use of public funds or other things of 

124



 5 

value provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 3. Expenditure of Public Funds.  To the same and like extent as is applicable 
to the City pursuant to State law, all expenditures or disbursements of funds received by 
the Agency, whether directly or indirectly, from the City shall be subject to competitive 
bidding. 
 
XIV.  SEVERABILITY 
 
 It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that in 
the event any covenant, condition or provision herein contained is held to be invalid by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, or otherwise appears to both parties to be invalid, 
the invalidity of any such covenant, condition, or provision herein contained, shall not 
affect other remaining and valid covenants or conditions herein unless such invalidity 
renders performance of the essential elements of the contract impossible. 
 
XV.  MISCELLANEOUS CLAUSES 
 
 Capacity: Each Party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other as 
follows: 
 
 A. That it is an individual of the age of majority or otherwise a legal entity duly 
organized and in good standing pursuant to all applicable laws, rules and regulations. 
 
 B. That each has full power and capacity to enter into this Agreement, to 
perform and to conclude the same including the capacity, to the extent applicable, to 
grant, convey and/or transfer, areas, assets, facilities, properties, (both real and 
personal), permits, consents and authorizations and/or the full power and right to 
acquire and accept the same. 
 
 C. That to the extent required, each Party has obtained the necessary 
approval of its governing body or board and a resolution or other binding act has been 
duly and properly enacted by such governing body or board authorizing this Agreement 
and said approval has been reduced to writing and certified or attested by the 
appropriate official of the Party. 
 
 D. That each Party has duly authorized and empowered a representative to 
execute this Agreement on their respective behalf and the execution of the Agreement 
by such representative fully and completely binds the Party to the terms and conditions 
hereof. 
 
 E. That absent fraud, the execution of this Agreement by a representative of 
the party shall constitute a certification that all such authorization for execution exists 
and has been performed and the other Party shall be entitled to rely upon the same.  To 
the extent a Party is a partnership, limited liability company or joint venture, the 
execution of this Agreement by any member thereof shall bind the Party and to the 
extent that the execution of Agreement is limited to a manager, managing partner or 
specific member then the person so executing this Agreement is duly authorized to act 

125



 6 

in such capacity for the Party. 
 
 F. That each party represents and warrants to the other that there is no 
litigation, claim, or administrative action threatened or pending or other proceedings to 
its knowledge against it which would have an adverse impact upon this transaction or 
upon either's ability to conclude the transaction or perform pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 G. That each party has obtained any and all required permits, approvals 
and/or authorizations from third parties to enable it to fully perform pursuant to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 Final Integration: This Agreement together with any amendments, constitutes 
the entire agreement of the parties, as a complete and final integration thereof with 
respect to its subject matter.  In the event of a direct conflict between the provisions 
hereof and any prior agreement or amendment, the latter shall supersede the former.  
All written or oral understandings and agreements heretofore had between and among 
the parties are merged into this Agreement, which alone fully and completely expresses 
their understandings.  No representation, warranty or covenant made by any party 
which is not contained in this Agreement or expressly referred to herein has been relied 
on by any party in entering into this Agreement. 
 
 Force Majeure: Neither party to this Agreement shall hold the other party 
responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, 
lockouts or other circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the other or the other 
party's employees agents or contractors. 
 
 Amendment in Writing: This Agreement may not be amended, modified, 
altered, changed, terminated or waived in any respect whatsoever, except by a further 
agreement in writing, properly executed by all of the parties. 
 
 Binding Effect: This Agreement shall bind the parties and their respective 
personal representatives, heirs, next of kin, legatees, distributees, successors, and 
assigns.  If any provision in this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the 
validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be 
affected or impaired thereby. 
 
 Captions: The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference 
only, are not a part of this Agreement, and in no way define, describe, extend or limit the 
scope or intent of this Agreement. 
 
 Constructions: This Agreement shall be construed in its entirety according to its 
plain meaning and shall not be construed against the party who provided or drafted it. 
 
 Mandatory and Permissive: "Shall", "will", and "agrees" are mandatory, "may" 
is permissive. 
 
 Governing Laws: The laws of the State of Alabama shall govern the validity of 

126



 7 

this Agreement, the construction of its terms, the interpretation of the rights, the duties 
of the parties, the enforcement of its terms, and all other matters relating to this 
Agreement. 
 
 Prohibition on Assignment and Delegation: No party to this Agreement may 
assign or delegate its interests or obligations hereunder without the written consent of 
all other parties hereto obtained in advance of any such assignment or delegation.  No 
such assignment or delegation shall in any manner whatsoever relieve any party from 
its obligations and duties hereunder and such assigning or delegating party shall in all 
respects remain liable irrespective of such assignment or delegation. 
 
 Waiver: Non enforcement of any provision of this Agreement by either party shall 
not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that 
provision or of the remaining terms and conditions of the Agreement. 
 
 Ownership of Contract Documents: The Contract Documents, and copies of 
parts thereof, are furnished and owned by the City.  All portions of the Contract 
Document, and copies of parts thereof, are the instruments of serve for this project.  
They are not to be used on other work and are to be returned to the City on request at 
the completion of the work.  Any reuse of these materials without specific written 
verification or adaptation by the City will be at the risk of the user and without liability or 
legal expense to the City.  Such user shall hold the City harmless from any and all 
damages, including reasonable attorneys fees, from any and all claims arising from any 
such reuse.  Any such verification and adoption shall entitle the City to further 
compensation at rates to be agreed upon by the user and the City. 
 
 Fines and Penalties The Contractor shall be solely liable for any and all fines or 
penalties which may be levied by any governmental authority against the Owner and/or 
Contractor which are related to the Contractor's operations.  The Owner shall deduct the 
amount of the levied fine or penalty from the Contract amount. 
 
 Agreement Date/Counterparts: The date of this Agreement is intended as and 
for a date for the convenient identification of this Agreement and is not intended to 
indicate that this Agreement was necessarily executed and delivered on said date.  This 
instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which so executed 
shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one 
and the same instrument. 
 
 Use of Words and Phrases: The following words and phrases, where used in 
this document, shall be given the following and respective interpretations.  "Herein," 
"hereby," "hereunder," and other equivalent words refer to this document as an entirety 
and not solely to the particular portion hereof in which any such word is used. 
 
 The definitions set forth in any portion of this Agreement unless the text or 
context indicates differently shall be deemed applicable whether the words defined are 
herein used in the singular or the plural.  Wherever used herein any pronoun or 
pronouns shall be deemed to include both singular and plural and to cover all genders. 
 

127



 8 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and date first set fort above. 
 
 
     CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation 
 
     ___________________________ 
     Fred Small, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________  
David Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 
 
 

MOBILE BAY NATIONAL ESTUARY PROGRAM 
 
     BY:_______________________________ 
 
     TITLE:_____________________________ 
 
     Federal Tax ID#:_____________________ 
 
WITNESS: 
 
 
____________________________ 
By:_________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mobile Bay National Estuary Program 
Attn:  Rebecca McElhenney, Program Administrator 
4172 Commanders Drive 
Mobile, AL 36615 
 
Dear Ms. McElhenney: 
 
Enclosed is payment in the amount of $ 3,000 and a fully executed contract between 
the NEP and the City of Daphne. 
 
Thank you for your assistance. 
 
For the City of Daphne,  
 

128



 9 

 
Kimberly Briley, Finance Director 

129



 
 

ORDINANCE 2011-32  
 
 

Campbell’s Swamp Appraisal Appropriation 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council is aware of the environmental impact the various 
swamps and wetlands in Daphne have to the vitality of Mobile Bay; and 
 
WHEREAS, Campbell’s Swamp is a part of the Mobile Bay Watershed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to obtain an appraisal of Campbell’s Swamp 
for informational purposes. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
Lodging Tax appropriation in an amount not to exceed $ 1,500 for the appraisal of 
Campbell’s Swamp. 
  
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
         
                                                                       ________________________________         

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                       

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Fred Small, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

130



ORDINANCE 2011-33  
 
 

(3) Library & (1) Recreation HVAC Unit Replacements 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the adopted budget does not include an appropriation for HVAC Unit 
replacements for the Library and Recreation Center; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current units needing replacement are twelve years old and the 
cost of maintenance cost increases each year. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $35,358 for the (3) Library and (1) 
Recreation HVAC Units.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS               day of                      , 2011. 
 

                                                                                                                                                    
_________________________________ 

                                                                      Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Fred Small, Mayor 
          
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

131



ORDINANCE 2011-34  
 

PW/Used Wheel Loader  
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2010-71 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2011 
Budget on December 20, 2010; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2011 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, in prior fiscal years, the City has leased a Wheel Loader for use in the 
Public Works Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, such operating lease will expire April, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, it was determined that it would be less costly over the life of the 
equipment to purchase a used wheel loader rather than continue to lease a new 
one; and  
 
 WHEREAS,  the FY 11 budget does include $21,600 to continue leasing the wheel 
loader and an additional appropriation of $38,565 will allow for the purchase of a 
used wheel loader. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that: the Fiscal Year 2011 Budget is hereby amended to include a 
General Fund appropriation in the amount of $38,565 for the purchase of a used 
wheel loader.  (Cost of used wheel loader - $60,165 – [$21,600 FY11 Budget]) 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2011. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

 Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                     
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                          Fred Small, Mayor 
          
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City, Clerk MMC 

132


	City Roll Call.pdf
	MAYOR

	Council Minutes - April 4.pdf
	Work Session Minutes - April 11.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Backup to Finance Minutes.pdf
	Buildings & Property Minutes - Mar 7 2011.pdf
	Buildings & Property Minutes - April.pdf
	Public Works Minutes - 1January 18.pdf
	Public Works Minutes - 2February.pdf
	Public Works Minutes - 3March 21 2011.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	BZA Minutes.pdf
	IDB March 28 Minutes.pdf
	Library Board Minutes - 1January.pdf
	Library Board Minutes - 2February.pdf
	Library Board Minutes - 3March.pdf
	Utility Board Minutes - APPROVED FEB mtg  2011.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	ABC License.pdf
	Parade Permit.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2011-34 - RES - Wheel Loader #2-purchase-2011.pdf
	2011-35 - RES - ConcretePipe.pdf
	Backup to 2011-35 - RES.pdf
	2011-36 - RES - Skid Steer Loader-purchase.pdf
	2011-37 - RES - Garbage Truck Lease.pdf
	2011-38 - RES - GOVDEALS.pdf
	2011-39 - RES - FD Burn Bldg Training Ctr-Truck-Equip-VFD Loan-2011.pdf
	Backup to 2011-39 - RES - VOL FD Burn Bldg Training Center-Truck-Equip-2011.pdf
	2011-40 - RES -  Lake Forest Yacht Club 2011.pdf
	2011-41 - RES - Ennis Property Aquistion Appraisal Resolution.pdf
	2011-30 -  ORD - Personnel Vacancy Grounds PSW.pdf
	2011-31 - ORD -  Mobile Bay NEP.pdf
	Backup to 2011-31 - ORD -  FY11 Mobile Bay NEP Contract.pdf
	2011-32 - ORD - Campbell Swamp.pdf
	2011-33 - ORD - Library(3) - Recreation (1) HVAC Units purchase.pdf
	2011-34 - ORD - Used Wheel Loader #2-pending.pdf



